
 

Page 1 of 5 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, MAY 6, 2024 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• February 20, 2024, Regular Meeting 
• March 4, 2024, Informal Meeting 
• March 25, 2024, Informal Meeting  

  
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

11086 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Comee Street. (In the City Council and Referred to the 
Public Safety Committee 11/6/2023; More Time 11/20/2023, 12/4/2023, 
12/18/2023, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024, 3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 
4/1/2024, 4/16/2024)   

 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
11257 – A Measure Authorizing a Five-Year Contract Period for General Office & 

Janitorial Supplies, Violation Processing and Emergency Notification System. 
(Finance Committee) 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 
11258 – A Memorandum from Mayor Nicholson Regarding the FY2025 City Budget.   
 
11259 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding Existing Non-Union Personnel 

Ordinances and Current Collective Bargaining Agreements. 
  
11260 – A Notification from the Mayor regarding the Submission of the FY2025 

School Department Budget. 
  
11272 – A Measure Establishing a Special Purpose Schools Reserve Stabilization 

Fund Under MGL Chapter 40, Section 5B. (Finance Committee) 
 
11273 – A Measure to Establish a Special Purpose Capital Projects Reserve 

Stabilization Account Under MGL Chapter 40, Section 5B. (Finance 
Committee) 

 
ORDERS 
 
11261 – A Measure Authorizing FY2025 Revolving Funds for the City Pursuant to 

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E ½. 
 
11262 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate the sum of $13,665,414.45 for the Various 

Departments of the City for the Salary and Labor Budget for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. 

 
11263 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate the sum of $27,407,277.00 for the Various 

Departments of the City for the Expense Budget for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. 

 
11264 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $34,212,226.00 for the School 

Department Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending 
June 30, 2025.  

 
11265 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $201,162.73 from Available Funds- 

Cable Commission Fees Reserved to Cable Commission Budget for the Fiscal 
Year Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. 

 
11266 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $10,819,080.00 from Available 

Enterprise Funds – Various Receipts Reserved to Various Enterprise 
Accounts for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 
2025. 

 
11267 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $170,000.00 from Available Funds- 

Bond Proceeds Reserved to Interest-Outside Debt for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. 

 



 

Page 3 of 5 

11268 – An Order Authorizing a Transfer of the sum of $322,709.43 from Sewer 
Retained Earnings/Surplus to Fund the FY2025 Revenue Budget. 

 
11269 – An Order Authorizing the Transfer of the sum of $93,687.00 from Landfill 

Retained Earnings/Surplus to fund the FY2025 Revenue Budget.   
 
11270 – An Order Transferring $10,000.00 from City Clerk Department Salaries and 

Wages to Election and Registration Professional Services Operating 
Expenditures. (Finance Committee) 

 
11271 – An Order Transferring $16,200.00 from Human Resources Salaries & Wages 

to Operating Expenditures. (Finance Committee) 
 
11277 – An Order Transferring $30,000.00 from Mayor Department, Executive Aide 

Salaries to Mayor Unclassified Department, Operating Expenditure. (Finance 
Committee) 

 
11281 – An Order Transferring $9,500.00 from Health Department Salaries & Wages 

to Health Department Operating Expenditures. (Finance Committee) 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
11274 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, 

thereof entitled “Personnel” to Change the Compensation Schedule, Exhibit 
E- Non-Union Personnel. 

 
11275 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 560 thereof 

entitled “Solid Waste,” to Change the Fee for Solid Waste Collection. 
(Finance Committee) 
 

11276 – An Ordinance to Amend Section 4 of Chapter 182 of the Code of the City of 
Gardner, thereof entitled “Zoning Board of Appeals,” to increase the number 
of members from 3 to 5. (Welfare Committee) 

 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

11256 – A Resolution to Rename the City Council Chamber "The Ronald F. Cormier 
Council Chamber." (Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack; More Time 
4/16/2024) 

 
11278 – A Petition by National Grid, Parker Street – to install duct bank across Parker 

Street from 29 Parker Street to 2 Parker Street. (Public Service Committee; 
Public Hearing Required) 

 
11279 – A Resolution Relating to the Future of Stone Field. (Submitted by Councillor 

Brad Heglin) 
 



 

Page 4 of 5 

11280 – A Ruling from the Attorney General Relative to an Open Meeting Law 
Complaint Filed by Paul DeMeo Regarding Executive Session Meeting 
Minutes. 

 
X. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
 
 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
 11139 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Bettez, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11140 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Swartz, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11141 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Stephen Cormier, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
 11255 - A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Vincent Pusateri, to the 

position of Assistant City Solicitor, for term expiring January 1, 2025. (In the 
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 4/16/2024) 

 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
11086 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Comee Street. (In the City Council and Referred to the 
Public Safety Committee 11/6/2023; More Time 11/20/2023, 12/4/2023, 
12/18/2023, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024, 3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 
4/1/2024, 4/16/2024) 

 
11115 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets.” – Douglas Road. (In the City Council & Referred to Safety 
Committee 12/18/2023; More Time 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024, 
3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024,4/16/2024) 

 
11204 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Edgell Street, from Elm Street to Lawrence Street. (More 
Time 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024,4/16/2024) 

 
 
 



 

Page 5 of 5 

11254 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Central Street (In the City Council 4/16/2024; Ordered to 
1st Printing 4/16/2024, 1st Printing 4/25/2024) 

 
 WELFARE COMMITTEE 
 

11211 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, to add a new 
Chapter 15 to be entitled “Agricultural Commission.” (In the City Council 
and Referred to Welfare Committee 3/18/2024; More Time 4/1/2024, 
4/16/2024) 

 
 COMMITTIEE OF THE WHOLE  
 

11220 – A Communication from the Mayor regarding the Non-Union Salary Study. 
(In the City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole 4/1/2024; More 
Time 4/16/2024) 

 
11232 – A Measure to Adopt Local Option Room Occupancy Excise Rate Increase 

Under MGL 64G, Sec. 3A. (Submitted by Councillor Paul G. Tassone; In the 
City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole 4/1/2024; More Time 
4/16/2024) 

 
11233 – A Measure to Adopt Local Option Sales Tax on Meals Under MGL. 64L, 

SEC 2(a). (Submitted by Councillor Paul G. Tassone; In the City Council and 
Referred to Committee of the Whole 4/1/2024; More Time 4/16/2024) 

 
11234 – A Resolution to Review the City’s Zoning Map for Accuracy. (Submitted by 

Councillor Paul G. Tassone; In the City Council and Referred to Committee 
of the Whole 4/1/2024; More Time 4/16/2024) 

 
XI.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
XIV. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Tuesday evening, February 20, 2024.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Nine (9) Councillors were present 
including Councillors Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz (via phone conference), Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz 
and George Tyros.  Councillor Craig Cormier was absent. 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-
Muñoz, it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy 
Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to waive the reading and 
accept the MINUTES of January 16, 2024, Joint Convention with the School Committee 
Minutes. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

#11190 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s Appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor's Appointment of Nathan Golisano, to the position of 
Police Officer, permanent. 
 
#11191 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to refer to the Appointments Committee 
for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Corinne 
Smith, to the position of Conservation Commission Member, for term expiring February 1, 
2027. 
 
#11192 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to refer to the Appointments Committee 
for further study and report, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Laura 
Cassady, to the position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring February 9, 2027. 
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
#11196 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to PLACE ON FILE, A Ruling from the 
Attorney General Relative to an Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed by Paul DeMeo. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11197 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was 
voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, 
David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to schedule an INFORMAL MEETING, District 
Update from State Representative Jonathan Zlotnik. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
#11118 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, 
it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adopt the following order: 
 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF PRIOR YEAR SALARY EXPENDITURE 
 
ORDERED:  To authorize payment of prior year DPW salary expenditure account for prior year, as 
follows: 
 
FY2023  DPW SALARY ACCOUNT                106.24 
 
#11172 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, 
it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to grant the following measure:  
 

ESTABLISHING A  
SEPARATE REVENUE FUND 

M.G.L. CH.44, S.53K 
 

VOTED: To authorize and direct the City Treasurer to establish a separate revenue fund 
in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 44, section 53K for associated costs imposed upon the 
city by the operation or location of the party in the city. Monies in such account shall be 
expended for the purposes for which the monies were received.  
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11173 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, 
it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to grant the following order:  
 
AUTHORIZING AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GARDNER AND 
THE TOWN OF WESTMINSTER FOR VETERAN’S SERVICES 
 
VOTED: To authorize the Mayor of the City of Gardner to enter into an Inter-Municipal with 
the Town of Westminster for the purpose of providing Veteran’s services among the two communities 
for Fiscal Years 2025, 2026, and 2027 under such terms and conditions as the Mayor deems appropriate 
and in accordance with the provisions of Section 4A of Chapter 40 of General Laws. 
 
#11174 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, 
it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to grant the following order:  
 
AUTHORIZING AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GARDNER AND 
THE TOWN OF ASHBURNHAM FOR VETERAN’S SERVICES 
 
VOTED: To authorize the Mayor of the City of Gardner to enter into an Inter-Municipal with 
the Town of Ashburnham for the purpose of providing Veteran’s services among the two communities 
for Fiscal Years 2025, 2026, and 2027 under such terms and conditions as the Mayor deems appropriate 
and in accordance with the provisions of Section 4A of Chapter 40 of General Laws. 
 
#11187 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, 
it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to grant the following order:  
 

CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS 
PRESIDENTIAL PRIMARY ORDER 

TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024 
 

VOTED: It is ordered that meetings of the citizens of this City qualified to vote in the 
Presidential Primaries shall be held on TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024 for the        
purpose of casting their votes in the Presidential Primaries for the candidates of 
political parties for the following offices: 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE...…..………...FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 
 STATE COMMITTEE MAN…….....WORCESTER & MIDDLESEX DISTRICT 
 STATE COMMITTEE WOMAN…..WORCESTER & MIDDLESEX DISTRICT 
 WARD COMMITTEE …..……………………………..…..CITY OF GARDNER 

 

It is further ordered that the polls shall open at 7:00 o'clock in the morning and close 
at 8:00 o'clock in the evening and that the following polling places are designated 
by this Council: 

 
  WARD 1, PRECINCT A – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 
  WARD 1, PRECINCT B – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 
  WARD 2, PRECINCT A – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 
  WARD 2, PRECINCT B – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 
  WARD 3, PRECINCT A – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street  
  WARD 3, PRECINCT B – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street 
  WARD 4, PRECINCT A – Gardner Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 
  WARD 4, PRECINCT B – Gardner Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 
  WARD 5, PRECINCT A – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Rd W 
  WARD 5, PRECINCT B – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Rd W 
 
ORDER posted in public places as follows: Elm Street School, Gardner Visiting Nursing 
Association, Gardner High School, Gardner Fish & Gun Club, Holy Family Academy, High Rise 
Lounge, Heywood Place (Boland Room), Gardner City Hall, Heywood Library, and DPW 
Office. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
#11086 
Councillor Karen Hardern requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Comee Street. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
#11115 
Councillor Karen Hardern requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets.” – Douglas Road. 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 
#11124 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming 
the Mayor’s Appointment of Alan Agnelli, to the position of Historical Commission Member, for term 
expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11125 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s Appointment: 
 
 A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Barbara LeBlanc, to the position of Council on 
Aging Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11126 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Tammy Erdman, to the position of Municipal Grounds Commission Member, for term expiring January 
9, 2027. 
 
#11127 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Thomas Zuppa, to the position of Building Commissioner, for term expiring January 9, 2027. 
 
#11128 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to remove from the calendar, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Charland, Esq., to the position of Assistant City Solicitor, for term expiring 
January 1, 2025. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to send a card of condolences to the family of Mr. Robert Charland. 
 
#11129 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Dane Arnold, to the position of Public Works Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11130 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Michael F. Ellis, to the position of Senior Citizen’s Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11131 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Lynette R. Gabrila, to the position of Veteran’s Agent/Veterans’ Burial Agent, for term expiring January 
4, 2025. 
 
#11132 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Gregory Lagoy, to the position of Fire Chief, for 
term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11133 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paul Topolski, to the position of Civil Defense 
Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11134 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Carla J. Wojtukiewcz, to the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term 
expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11135 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Robert Rice, Esq., to the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term 
expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11136 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Cheryl Slack, to the position of Animal Control 
Officer, for term expiring January 4, 2025. 
 
#11137 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Autumn Brown, to the position of Animal Control 
Officer, for term expiring January 4, 2025. 
 
#11138 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz, it 
was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Alana Meserve, to the position of Animal Control 
Officer, for term expiring January 4, 2025. 
 
#11139 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Robert Bettez, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11140 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Robert Swartz, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11141 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Stephen Cormier, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11142 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Charles LeBlanc, to the position of Board of Assessors, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11143 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Rick Germano, to the position of Local Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11144 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 10 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
James E. Imprescia, to the position of Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11145 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Michael Fitzsimmons, to the position of License Commission Member, for term expiring January 4, 
2027. 
 
#11146 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Kenneth Arsenault, to the position of License Commission Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11147 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Nancy Binder, to the position of License Commission Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11148 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Ann Twohig, to the position of Golf Commission Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11149 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted 
on call of the roll, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros, to 
CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kathy O’Brien, to the position of Council on Aging 
Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 11 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11150 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Timothy Horrigan, to the position of Redevelopment Authority, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11151 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Theresa Hillman, to the position of Council on 
Aging Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11152 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Gloria Tarpey, to the position of Council on Aging 
Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11153 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Susan Avallone, RN, to the position of Board of Health Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11154 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Geoffrey Tobia, to the position of Board of Health Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11155 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 12 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Michele Parker, to the position of MD, Board of Health Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11156 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Marcelle S. Cormier, to the position of Board of Registrar Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. 
 
#11157 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Patricia Darby, to the position of Board of Registrar Member, for term expiring January 9, 2027. 
 
#11158 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Kevin McInerney, to the position of Contributory Retirement Board, for term expiring January 11, 
2027. 
 
#11181 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros for MORE TIME on,, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of 
Paul Cormier, to the position of Golf Commission Member, for term expiring January 22, 2027. 
 
#11182 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Frimpong Antwi, to the position of Police 
Officer, permanent. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 13 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

A brief recess was taken at 8:03 PM to administer the oath of office to those appointees that were 
present. 
 
Meeting resumed at 8:09 PM. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 
#11180 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was voted on 
call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and 
George Tyros, for MORE TIME on, An Order Appropriating $625,000.00 from Stabilization to DPW 
Salt Shed. 
 

UNFINISTHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

#11112 
The President requested MORE TIME on – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table 
of Uses. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11113 
The President requested MORE TIME on – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, 
“Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota Allowed by the 
Code of the City of Gardner. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Paul Tassone and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted 
viva voce, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 14 of 14 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David 
Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adjourn at 8:14 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:  



 
INFORMAL MEETING OF MARCH 4, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Informal Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Monday evening, Mach 4, 2024. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:00 o’clock p.m.  
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Nine (9) Councillors present were present 
including President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz and 
George Tyros. 
 
Also in attendance and participating was State Representative Jonathan Zlotnik. 
 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced that the purpose of this informal meeting regarding 
agenda item #11197 – District Update from State Representative Jonathan Zlotnik. This was in 
the City Council and referred to the Committee of the Whole and schedule an informal 
meeting at the previous February meeting. 
 
11197 – District Update from State Representative Jonathan Zlotnik. 
State Representative Jonathan Zlotnik informed the City Council of the following updates: 

• This update is done routinely in other towns and districts. This was the first time he 
has been invited here. 

• There are three home rule petitions submitted by Gardner to the legislature for 
approval. 

• The first petition is relative to changing the City Charter. It was approved by the subject 
committee to which it as assigned. The next step is to come to the house floor for a 
Senate vote, and then the Governor for signature. 

• The second petition is the Heritage Park land transfer. The City is looking to reacquire 
the property of the property of former Heritage State Park in downtown Gardner, in 
exchange the City would grant Stump Pond to the state. There are several more steps 
to transfer property, which is a long process. There is still a way to go. 

• The third petition is the Bill relative to civil service in the City’s Police Department. It 
was a petition to remove Gardner’s Police Department from civil service. There are 17 
other municipalities in pending legislation trying to remove civil service. The state 
Civil Service Review Commission determined that the City joined civil service not by 
Act of the legislature, but by a town meeting vote. The commission determined that 



 
INFORMAL MEETING OF MARCH 4, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

communities that entered civil service through their own means, not through 
legislative approval can exit through the same manner and do not need the approval of 
the legislature. 

• An item that is going on in the legislature is that they are starting the budget process 
for FY2025. 

• The house will be debating the first version of the budget on the last week of April. 
• The states “raining day” stabilization account stands at $8.3 billion, which is the largest 

in Massachusetts history. 
• This is the first fiscal year that the tax cut package, that was passed last year, will hit 

our books. It will impact the City of Gardner taxpayers more. One of them is the senior 
citizen circuit breaker tax credit. Available to taxpayers over the age of 65 to qualify 
for a $100,000.00 a year for the tax credit. 

• The other is rental deduction of $4,000.00 that are subject to different qualifications. 
• There is a child tax credit that is up to $440 per child with no cap on the number of 

children and an Earned Income Tax Credit to 40% of what the Federal Credit is. 
• One of the largest fiscal impacts from the state to the city is the public schools. Much 

of the public-school funding for the City of Gardner comes from the state budget. It is 
on track to be fully funded. 

• Gardner has been the recipient of fairly large economic and community development 
grants in recent years. 

 
 

The Informal Meeting concluded at 7:21 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:   
 



 
INFORMAL MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Informal Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Monday evening, March 25, 2024. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 6:00 o’clock p.m.  
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Assistant City Clerk Elizabeth Doiron called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors 
present were present including President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros. Councillor Craig Cormier was absent. 
 
Also in attendance and participating was Mayor Michael Nicholson, Community 
Development and Planning Director Trevor Beauregard. 
 
President Kazinskas announced that there was a quorum and stated: “For the public 
watching this evening, we are meeting informally tonight regarding agenda item #11200 – A 
Request from Councillor George Tyros to have an Informal Meeting to Review the City’s 
management of the Community Development Block Grant Program. This item was in the 
City Council regular meeting packet for Monday, March 4, 2024, meeting, where the City 
Council voted to meet as Committee of the Whole on this item, which is the purpose of our 
meeting this evening. City Councilors and the public have had the opportunity to review the 
item, ask questions and gather information since the packet was posted on Thursday, 
February 29, 2024. This is not an item that requires a further vote of the Council but rather 
this meeting is informational. Also, for the public watching this evening, the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG), provides funding and technical support for projects that 
achieve the City’s development objectives while principally benefiting low- and moderate-
income persons and or addressing slum and blight conditions. Funding for the CDBG is 
provided by US Department of Housing and Urban Development under the guidelines of title 
one of the Housing and Community Act of 1974, as amended. Councillor Tyros is the City 
Council’s designated member of the CDBG Steering Committee, which meets periodically 
and is made up of six members under the City’s Community Development and Planning 
Department. Community Development and Planning Director Trevor Beauregard is here this 
evening to provide information and answer questions on the topic of the meeting.” 
 
 
 



 
INFORMAL MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11200 – A Request from Councillor George Tyros to have an Informal Meeting to Review 
the City’s management of the Community Development Block Grant Program. 
Councillor George Tyros explained why we are here and his objective in having this 
discussion. He reached out to the Director in February and requested an update on a previous 
block grant project, specifically the demolition of the Greenwood indoor pool construction, 
the new pavilion and Mackie Park downtown. He questioned if there were issues identified 
in the states’ monitoring of the block grant program in February and what actions is his 
department taking to resolve those issues. 
 
Director Trevor Beauregard informed the City Council of the following: 

• The audit from the 21 grant is not holding up any funding currently. 
• Funding for FY2023 is being held up because an environmental review needs to be 

done and meet two different conditions that were placed upon. 
• He hasn’t had the staff in place. The new Assistant Director who started last week is 

now implementing that process and working with the state. 
• They have responded to the audit for the Park Street construction, Monument Park 

project, and four other public social services under that grant. 
 
Councillor Tyros questioned if the reason the environmental study was not done was because 
of staffing concerns. 
 
Director Beauregard responded, “correct.” 
 
Councillor Dernalowicz is aware of the turnaround and short staff in his office. He wanted to 
know if there is a plan in place moving forward and help “plug those holes” in future in case 
there is another turnover down the line. Some items weren’t being turned in and there were 
unsatisfactory progress reports. 
 
Director Beauregard responded that the state has given the new Assistant Director Evan 
Cudmore, some training modules. Trevor himself has learned a lot the past few months. 
There are resources out there they can reach out to. They have decades of successful 
programs that have ran through the department, so he has directed Mr. Cudmore go through 
previous years.  

 
Councillor Tassone asked if he has utilized the grant writer to help with these grants. 
 
Director Beauregard responded that they manage upward to 6 to 8 million in grant money. 
He has had a recent turnover of 3 staff people for the second time in three years. It is time 
consuming reporting, overseeing projects, making sure people are submitting reports, 



 
INFORMAL MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

invoices, and training. Writing grants is one thing, administering them is another. The hard 
part is the administration management. The 2021 grants are pretty much closed out. FY2022 
and FY2023 they are currently working on.  
 
Councillor Tyros mentioned that he is pleased to hear that he is taking more of a leadership 
role in the 2022-2023 grants and making sure that these reports and standard procedures are 
being followed.  
 
Councillor Mack mentioned that during FY2022-2023 there was gross negligence. Someone 
didn’t do their job. She hopes that can be corrected moving forward. 
 
The Informal Meeting concluded at 6:28 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:   
 



   CITY OF GARDNER 
 MASSACHUSETTS 01440 

  OFFICE OF THE 

        CITY CLERK 
  Room 121, City Hall 
  Tel  (978) 630-4058 
  Fax (978) 630-2589   

 NOTICE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council will conduct a Public Hearing on 

Monday, May 6, 2024 at 7:30 p.m. in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 

Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, Massachusetts, regarding: 

11086 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner 

Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled 

“Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Comee Street. (In the City 

Council and Referred to the Public Safety Committee 11/6/2023; More 

Time 11/20/2023, 12/4/2023, 12/18/2023, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 

2/20/2024, 3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024, 4/16/2024)   

Persons interested in this matter are encouraged to attend and to offer testimony. 

CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 

Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 

11086



AN ORDINACNE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” by amended by adding the following 
 
Name of Street  Side   Loca�on 
Comee St   West   En�re Length 
Comee St   East   From Pearl Street southerly for a distance  

of 30 feet 

11086



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street ֱ• Gardner, Massachusetts 01440 

                                      Emergency-Dial 911 
  Main line: (978) 632-5600 
Fax Line: (978) 630-4027 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC COMMISSION - MEETING MINUTES 

Date: Thursday August 10,2023       Time: 10am 

Location: Community Classroom, GPD 

 

Provided by Dept. Chief of Police Nick Maroni 

 

1. Members in attendance:  Call to Order: 10:03 am by D.C. Nicholas Maroni 

Dane Arnold – Director of DPW 

Rob Oliva – City Engineer 

Josh Cormier – Director of Civil Enforcement 

Craig Cormier – Councilor at large  

 

Member(s) not in attendance- Trevor Beauregard 

 

2. Waive reading / acceptance of meeting minutes from April 24,2023  

 

a. Motion by Dane, 2nd by Rob, All in favor – Unanimous.  

 

3. Rob- updated on flashing school zone signs on Catherine St 

 

a. Future updates to city ordinance to define current school zones. 

 

4. Gardner ale house renting a parking spot on parker St to designate as Pick up parking. 

a. Josh- if allowed would this cause other businesses to ask too. 

b. Dane-not in favor, large parking area behind business and across the street 

c. Nick- limited parking already in the downtown area 

d. Dane motion to not allow pick up parking for all of downtown, Rob 2nd, unanimous vote. 

 

5. Pedestrian traffic concerns with new Tap House going in at Bullnose Park. 

a. Rob- ask Tap house to help enhance crosswalks in area, flashing lights, push button to activate when 

pedestrians cross. Recommends city work with building owner to install flashing lights 

 

6. New School Traffic and speeding on Catherine St.  

a. Dane worked with school on new traffic pattern for drop off and pick up that should cut down on traffic. 

Tabled until start of school to see how it works. 

 

7. Eliminate Parking Spot on Central St near the cross walk at Lake St on the Southwest travel side of Central St so 

pedestrians can be seen by motor vehicles.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd All in Favor-Unanimous 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee  

 

8. Remove handicap spot in front of 144 Central St and recommend city council to approve new Handicap spots on 

Central St at Monument Park.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd, all in favor, unanimous. 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee 

c. Let property owner know about removing Handicap spot in front of 144 Central. 

 

11086



9. Eliminate parking spot in front of crosswalk on west bound side of East Broadway at Prospect St so motor vehicles

can see pedestrians in the cross walk.

a. Dane motioned, Rob 2nd all in favor, unanimous.

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee.

10. New Business

a. Rob suggested making whole length of westside of Comee St no parking and making no parking 30 ft

from stop sign on east side heading from Pearl St

i. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd all in favor, unanimous will be forwarded to public safety committee.

b. Speeding on Elm St & Lawrence St, request more enforcement with school starting.

c. Craig asked about speeding issues on Chesley St

i. Nick stated Officers did enforcement in that area and we have not received any further complaints.

Conclusion: At 10:56 am Dane made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Craig 

All in favor - Unanimous 

Next Traffic Committee Meeting Schedule: TBD 

11086

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight



11257



11257



11257



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11258



11259



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11260



11272



11272



11272



11272



11272



11273



11273



11273



11273



11261



11261



11261



11262



11262



11263



11263



11264



11264



11265



11265



11266



11266



11267



11267



11268



11268



11269



11269



11270



11270



11271



AN ORDER TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS FROM HUMAN RESOURCES 
SALARIES & WAGES TO OPERATING EXPENDITURES. 

ORDERED: 

That there be and is hereby transferred the appropriations sum of Sixteen 

Thousand Dollars, Two Hundred and No Cents ($16,200.00) from Human Resources 

Salaries & Wages to Operating Expenditures. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $ 16,200 

11271



11271



11277



11277



11281



11281



11274



11275



11275



11276



11276



11256



11256



11278



11278



11278



11278



11278



11279



11280



11280



11280



11280



11280



11280



11280



11280



11280



11139



11140



11141



11255



   CITY OF GARDNER 
 MASSACHUSETTS 01440 

  OFFICE OF THE 

        CITY CLERK 
  Room 121, City Hall 
  Tel  (978) 630-4058 
  Fax (978) 630-2589   

 NOTICE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council will conduct a Public Hearing on 

Monday, May 6, 2024 at 7:30 p.m. in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 

Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, Massachusetts, regarding: 

11086 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner 

Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled 

“Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Comee Street. (In the City 

Council and Referred to the Public Safety Committee 11/6/2023; More 

Time 11/20/2023, 12/4/2023, 12/18/2023, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 

2/20/2024, 3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024, 4/16/2024)   

Persons interested in this matter are encouraged to attend and to offer testimony. 

CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 

Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 

11086



AN ORDINACNE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” by amended by adding the following 
 
Name of Street  Side   Loca�on 
Comee St   West   En�re Length 
Comee St   East   From Pearl Street southerly for a distance  

of 30 feet 

11086



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street ֱ• Gardner, Massachusetts 01440 

                                      Emergency-Dial 911 
  Main line: (978) 632-5600 
Fax Line: (978) 630-4027 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC COMMISSION - MEETING MINUTES 

Date: Thursday August 10,2023       Time: 10am 

Location: Community Classroom, GPD 

 

Provided by Dept. Chief of Police Nick Maroni 

 

1. Members in attendance:  Call to Order: 10:03 am by D.C. Nicholas Maroni 

Dane Arnold – Director of DPW 

Rob Oliva – City Engineer 

Josh Cormier – Director of Civil Enforcement 

Craig Cormier – Councilor at large  

 

Member(s) not in attendance- Trevor Beauregard 

 

2. Waive reading / acceptance of meeting minutes from April 24,2023  

 

a. Motion by Dane, 2nd by Rob, All in favor – Unanimous.  

 

3. Rob- updated on flashing school zone signs on Catherine St 

 

a. Future updates to city ordinance to define current school zones. 

 

4. Gardner ale house renting a parking spot on parker St to designate as Pick up parking. 

a. Josh- if allowed would this cause other businesses to ask too. 

b. Dane-not in favor, large parking area behind business and across the street 

c. Nick- limited parking already in the downtown area 

d. Dane motion to not allow pick up parking for all of downtown, Rob 2nd, unanimous vote. 

 

5. Pedestrian traffic concerns with new Tap House going in at Bullnose Park. 

a. Rob- ask Tap house to help enhance crosswalks in area, flashing lights, push button to activate when 

pedestrians cross. Recommends city work with building owner to install flashing lights 

 

6. New School Traffic and speeding on Catherine St.  

a. Dane worked with school on new traffic pattern for drop off and pick up that should cut down on traffic. 

Tabled until start of school to see how it works. 

 

7. Eliminate Parking Spot on Central St near the cross walk at Lake St on the Southwest travel side of Central St so 

pedestrians can be seen by motor vehicles.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd All in Favor-Unanimous 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee  

 

8. Remove handicap spot in front of 144 Central St and recommend city council to approve new Handicap spots on 

Central St at Monument Park.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd, all in favor, unanimous. 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee 

c. Let property owner know about removing Handicap spot in front of 144 Central. 

 

11086



9. Eliminate parking spot in front of crosswalk on west bound side of East Broadway at Prospect St so motor vehicles

can see pedestrians in the cross walk.

a. Dane motioned, Rob 2nd all in favor, unanimous.

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee.

10. New Business

a. Rob suggested making whole length of westside of Comee St no parking and making no parking 30 ft

from stop sign on east side heading from Pearl St

i. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd all in favor, unanimous will be forwarded to public safety committee.

b. Speeding on Elm St & Lawrence St, request more enforcement with school starting.

c. Craig asked about speeding issues on Chesley St

i. Nick stated Officers did enforcement in that area and we have not received any further complaints.

Conclusion: At 10:56 am Dane made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Craig 

All in favor - Unanimous 

Next Traffic Committee Meeting Schedule: TBD 

11086

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Douglas Rd  South From Coleman Street westerly for a distance 

of 30 feet 

11115



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street 

Gardner, MA 01440 
Phone (978) 632-5600 

Fax (978) 630-9045 

Eric P. McAvene       Nicholas P. Maroni 
Chief of Police  Deputy Chief of Police 

Date: 12/5/2023 

To Councilor Cormier, Committee Chairman, and members of the Public Safety Committee, 

The Traffic Committee met on November 28,2023 and discussed a few changes and 

recommendations to increase the safety of the City’s roadways. The following are the changes 

and recommendations the Traffic Committee voted on, unanimously (6 of 6) to send to the 

Public Safety Committee for review.  

1. City Ordinance change to §600-24 (Parking prohibited on certain Streets) due to parking

spots being eliminated by new construction around Monument Park.

Name of Street  Side  Location 

Park Street   South  From Cottage Street to Central St 

2. Temporary 60 Day restricted parking trial on the North side of Edgell St to Westford St.

3. Recommended eliminating parking 30 ft southerly side of Douglas Rd.

The commission appreciates your attention to these matters and members can be made available 

if further clarification is needed. Photos of the proposed areas have been attached.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nicholas Maroni 

Deputy Chief of Police/ Traffic Committee Commissioner 

CC: Traffic Commission members, City Clerk 

11115



11115



11115



11115



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Edgell Street  North From Elm Street to Lawrence Street 

11204



11254



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11220



11220



11220



11232



11232



11232



11232



11233



11233



11233



11233



11234


	02-20-2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	APPOINTMENTS
	#11190
	#11191
	#11192
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Ma...
	PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
	#11196
	On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Ma...
	#11197
	On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mac...




